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(Complainant) ? filed a formal complaint
against Southwest Power Pool, Inc.,
(SPP or Respondent) seeking revision of
SPP’s Open Access Transmission Tariff
to prevent cost shifts occurring when
new SPP Transmission Owners are
added to existing transmission pricing
zones, all as more fully explained in the
complaint.

Complainant certifies that copies of
the complaint were served on the
contacts for the Respondent as listed on
the Commission’s list of Corporate
Officials.

Any person desiring to intervene or to
protest this filing must file in
accordance with Rules 211 and 214 of
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure (18 CFR 385.211, 385.214).
Protests will be considered by the
Commission in determining the
appropriate action to be taken, but will
not serve to make protestants parties to
the proceeding. Any person wishing to
become a party must file a notice of
intervention or motion to intervene, as
appropriate. The Respondent’s answer
and all interventions, or protests must
be filed on or before the comment date.
The Respondent’s answer, motions to
intervene, and protests must be served
on the Complainants.

The Commission encourages
electronic submission of protests and
interventions in lieu of paper using the
eFiling link at http://www.ferc.gov.
Persons unable to file electronically
should submit an original and 5 copies
of the protest or intervention to the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
888 First Street NE., Washington, DC
20426.

This filing is accessible on-line at
http://www.ferc.gov, using the eLibrary
link and is available for electronic
review in the Commission’s Public
Reference Room in Washington, DC.

There is an eSubscription link on the
Web site that enables subscribers to
receive email notification when a
document is added to a subscribed
docket(s). For assistance with any FERC
Online service, please email
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, or call
(866) 208-3676 (toll free). For TTY, call
(202) 502-8659.

Comment Date: 5:00 p.m. Eastern
Time on November 2, 2017.

Dated: October 18, 2017.
Nathaniel J. Davis, Sr.,
Deputy Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2017-22986 Filed 10-23-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6717-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission

[Docket No. RM98-1-000]

Records Governing Off-the-Record
Communications; Public Notice

This constitutes notice, in accordance
with 18 CFR 385.2201(b), of the receipt
of prohibited and exempt off-the-record
communications.

Order No. 607 (64 FR 51222,
September 22, 1999) requires
Commission decisional employees, who
make or receive a prohibited or exempt
off-the-record communication relevant
to the merits of a contested proceeding,
to deliver to the Secretary of the
Commission, a copy of the
communication, if written, or a
summary of the substance of any oral
communication.

Prohibited communications are
included in a public, non-decisional file
associated with, but not a part of, the
decisional record of the proceeding.
Unless the Commission determines that

the prohibited communication and any
responses thereto should become a part
of the decisional record, the prohibited
off-the-record communication will not
be considered by the Commission in
reaching its decision. Parties to a
proceeding may seek the opportunity to
respond to any facts or contentions
made in a prohibited off-the-record
communication, and may request that
the Commission place the prohibited
communication and responses thereto
in the decisional record. The
Commission will grant such a request
only when it determines that fairness so
requires. Any person identified below as
having made a prohibited off-the-record
communication shall serve the
document on all parties listed on the
official service list for the applicable
proceeding in accordance with Rule
2010, 18 CFR 385.2010.

Exempt off-the-record
communications are included in the
decisional record of the proceeding,
unless the communication was with a
cooperating agency as described by 40
CFR 1501.6, made under 18 CFR
385.2201(e)(1)(v).

The following is a list of off-the-
record communications recently
received by the Secretary of the
Commission. The communications
listed are grouped by docket numbers in
ascending order. These filings are
available for electronic review at the
Commission in the Public Reference
Room or may be viewed on the
Commission’s Web site at http://
www.ferc.gov using the eLibrary link.
Enter the docket number, excluding the
last three digits, in the docket number
field to access the document. For
assistance, please contact FERC Online
Support at FERCOnlineSupport@
ferc.gov or toll free at (866) 208—3676, or
for TTY, contact (202) 502—8659.

Docket No. File date Presenter or requester

Prohibited:

1. CP16—10—000 ....ooiiiiiiiiiee ettt eee e 10-3-2017 | Phyllis Duncan.

2. CP15-558-000 ... 10-3-2017 | World Business Academy.

3. P—2305-076 .... 10-3-2017 | Niblett’'s Bluff Park Commission.

4. CP15-88—000 .....eeerueirieeiieeeiiienieesiee et e eee et sine e e e naes 10-5-2017 | Citizens from Boyle County, Kentucky.?

5. PF15-3-000, CP16—10—000, CP16—13-000 .........c00vveeerecurrrenns 10-6—2017 | Pat Curran Leonard.

6. CP15-558—000 ......ceeiiiiieiiieeeiiiieeriee e eiiee et eeeeeee s eeeseeeeenees 10-10-2017 | The Chamber of Commerce for Greater Philadelphia.
Exempt:

1. P—2660—028, P—2660—029 .......cccccciriiieeeeeceiieeeeeee e eeeeeennens 9-28-2017 | Government of Canada.

2. CP17-101-000 10-3-2017 | U.S. Senator Cory A. Booker.

3. CP17-41-000 ..... 10-4-2017 | FERC Staff.2

4. EL17-15-001 oot e 10-4-2017 | U.S. House Representative Brett Guthrie.

1The Indicated SPP Transmission Owners are
identified as: American Electric Power Service
Company, on behalf of Public Service Company of
Oklahoma and Southwestern Electric Power
Company; City Utilities of Springfield, Missouri;

Kansas City Power & Light Company; KCP&L
Greater Missouri Operations Company; Nebraska
Public Power District; Oklahoma Gas & Electric
Company; Omaha Public Power District;
Southwestern Public Service Company; Sunflower

Electric Power Corporation, LLC; Mid-Kansas
Electric Company, LLC; Westar Energy, Inc.; and
Western Farmers Electric Cooperative.
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5. CP16-38—000 ......cectiiruriiiieiiieniieeie ettt s 10-12-2017 | U.S. Senator Shelley Moore Capito.

1Sarah Vahlkamp, Tena Messer, Jim and Linda Porter, Truly and Eric Mount, Mark Morgan, Jane and JP Brantley, Anne and Charles Fer-
guson, Susan and Walter Nimocks, Preston Miles, and Julie Pease.
2Telephone Call Summary for call on 9/28/2017 with Eagle LNG.

Dated: October 17, 2017.
Nathaniel J. Davis, Sr.,
Deputy Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2017—-22978 Filed 10-23-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6717-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission

Combined Notice of Filings

Take notice that the Commission has
received the following Natural Gas
Pipeline Rate and Refund Report filings:

Filings Instituting Proceedings

Docket Numbers: RP18-35-000.

Applicants: Garden Banks Gas
Pipeline, LLC.

Description: § 4(d) Rate Filing: Garden
Banks Oct2017 Phase II Filing to be
effective 12/1/2017.

Filed Date: 10/16/17.

Accession Number: 20171016-5162.

Comments Due: 5 p.m. ET 10/30/17.

Docket Numbers: RP18-36—-000.

Applicants: Mississippi Canyon Gas
Pipeline, L.L.C.

Description: § 4(d) Rate Filing:
Mississippi Canyon Phase II Filing to be
effective 12/1/2017.

Filed Date: 10/16/17.

Accession Number: 20171016-5199.

Comments Due: 5 p.m. ET 10/30/17.

The filings are accessible in the
Commission’s eLibrary system by
clicking on the links or querying the
docket number.

Any person desiring to intervene or
protest in any of the above proceedings
must file in accordance with Rules 211
and 214 of the Commission’s
Regulations (18 CFR 385.211 and
§ 385.214) on or before 5:00 p.m. Eastern
time on the specified comment date.
Protests may be considered, but
intervention is necessary to become a
party to the proceeding.

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed
information relating to filing
requirements, interventions, protests,
service, and qualifying facilities filings
can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For
other information, call (866) 208—3676
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502—8659.

Dated: October 17, 2017.
Nathaniel J. Davis, Sr.,
Deputy Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2017-22979 Filed 10-23-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6717-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION
[Docket No. 17-09]

Fiat Chrysler Automobiles NV, FCA US
LLC and FCA ltaly S.P.A., V. Wallenius
Wilhelmsen Logistics AS, Wallenius
Wilhelmsen Logistics Americas LLC,
EUKOR Car Carriers INC., Nippon
Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha, NYK Line
(North America) INC., Mitsui O.S.K.
Lines, LTD., MOL (America) INC.,
Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha, LTD.,”K” Line
America, INC., Compania Sud
Americana De Vapores, And Hoégh
Autoliners AS, Notice of Filing of
Complaint and Assignment

Notice is given that a Complaint has
been filed with the Federal Maritime
Commission (Commission) by Fiat
Chrysler Automobiles NV, FCA US LLC,
and FCA Italy S.p.A, hereinafter
“Complainants,” against the above
named companies, hereinafter
“Respondents.” Complainants allege
that Respondents are ocean common
carriers, and indicate that since 1997,
Complainants have ‘“purchased
hundreds of millions of dollars” worth
of roll on, roll off cargo services from
Respondents.”

Complainants allege that Respondents
“have conspired and acted in concert to
suppress competition for roll on, roll off
cargo shipping services” in violation of
46 U.S.C. 40302(a), 41102(b)(1),
41102(c), 41103(a)(1), 41103(2),
41104(10), 41105(1) and 41105(6), and
the regulations promulgated thereunder,
46 CFR 535.401 et seq.,” as Respondents
“failed to file their agreements to fix
prices, allocate customers and/or
artificially restrain capacity”, and
charged Complainants fees “in
accordance with these unfiled
agreements.”

Complainants have “‘suffered
financial damages in amount to be
determined . . .” Complainants request
the following relief:

1. ““That Respondents be required to
answer the charges herein;

2. That, after due investigation and
hearing, Respondents be found to have

violated 46 U.S.C. 40302(a), 41102(b)(1),
41102(c), 41103(a)(1), 41103(2)
41104(10), 41105(1), and 41105(6), and
46 CFR 535.401 et seq.;

3. That the FMC order Respondents to
stop violating the Shipping Act;

4. That [Complainants] be awarded
reparations in a sum to be proven under
46 U.S.C. 41305, interest (46 U.S.C.
41305(a)) and reasonable attorneys’ fees
(46 U.S.C. 41305(b));

5. That [Complainants] be awarded
double its proven injury under 46 U.S.C.
41305(c) because Respondents and their
co-conspirators violated 46 U.S.C.
41102(b) and 41105(1);

6. That Respondents be found jointly
and severally liable for the conduct
alleged herein and any reparations
awarded;

7. That such other and further order
be made as the FMC determines to be
proper; and

8. [Complaints] request a hearing and
asks that the hearing be held in
Washington, DC.”

The full text of the complaint can be
found in the Commission’s Electronic
Reading Room at www.fmc.gov/17-09.

This proceeding has been assigned to
the Office of Administrative Law Judges.
The initial decision of the presiding
officer in this proceeding shall be issued
by October 17, 2018 and the final
decision of the Commission shall be
issued by May 1, 2019.

Rachel E. Dickon,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2017-22969 Filed 10-23-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6731-AA-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Agency Information Collection
Activities: Announcement of Board
Approval Under Delegated Authority
and Submission to OMB

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System.

SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System (Board) is
adopting a proposal to implement the
Survey of Household Economics and
Decisionmaking (FR 3077; OMB No.
7100-NEW).

On June 15, 1984, the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB)
delegated to the Board authority under
the Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) to
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